
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Monday 17 May 2021 
 

Allerdale Waste Services 
Shareholder Committee 

 

Tuesday 25 May 2021, 10.30 am 
 

Hunday Manor Hotel 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)  
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald Councillor Anthony Markley 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Democratic Services on 01900 702502. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

 To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 
2021. 

  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Managing Director's Quarterly Progress Report January - March 2021  
(Pages 9 - 16) 
 

 



 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Monday 23 August 2021, 3.00 pm 

Venue to be confirmed 
 
 



At a meeting of the Allerdale Waste Services Shareholder Committee held on Zoom 
Virtual Meeting on Monday 15 February 2021 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)  
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald Councillor Anthony Markley 
  
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, J Irving, L Jardine, C Nicholson, G Roach and A Seekings 
 
Also Present 
 
J Fisher and C Holmes (Director of Allerdale Waste Services) 
 
304. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2020 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

305. Declaration of interests  
 
None declared. 
 

306. Managing Director's Quarterly Progress Report October - December 2020  
 
The Managing Director of Allerdale Waste Services presented to the Committee 
a quarterly progress report of the company for the period October - December 
2020. 
 
The Committee noted a comparison of the amount of tonnage of waste and 
recycling that was collected against the same quarter in the previous year and 
the number of missed containers during that period.  
 
In October 2020 the Company Board had discussed future business 
opportunities and agreed a business plan to establish an MOT business. This 
was approved by the Shareholder Committee in December 2020 and the Team 
had been working hard since to ensure an anticipated April 2021 start.   
 
The report highlighted the main health and safety activities that had been 
undertaken. 
 
The Chair then moved -  
 
That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for agenda item 4 ‘Management Accounts’ on 
the grounds that it may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



The members considered the Management Accounts for the period 19 
November 2019 to 31 December 2020. 
 
Councillor T Markley moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Fitzgerald.  
The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Resolved 
 
That –  
 

1. The quarterly progress report be noted  
2. The Management Accounts for the period 19 November 2019 to 31 

December 2020 be noted. 
 

307. Business Plan and Annual Service Charge  
 
The Managing Director of Allerdale Waste Services presented to the Committee 
a report detailing the Allerdale Waste Services Business Plan including the 
Annual Operating Revenue Plan and Annual Service Charge for 2021/22. 
 
It was highlighted there were typographical errors in table 1 at 4.1.1 and in 
paragraph 4.1.3 of the report and again replicated on pages 21 and 22 of the 
supplement.  
It was agreed the report be corrected and recirculated to members following the 
meeting. 
 
Councillor T Markley moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Fitzgerald. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Business Plan and annual service charge as set out in the report be 
approved. 
 

The meeting closed at 2.51 pm 
 

Page 4



Document is Restricted

Page 3

Minute Item 307
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Allerdale Waste Services Shareholder Committee - 

 25 May 2021 

 

Quarterly Report January – March 2021 

 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Tony Markley 

Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services 

Report from    Charles Holmes, Managing Director 

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 This report provides an update on the progress of the Waste and Recycling 
Services undertaken in the 4th Quarter of 2020/21 and includes a summary of 
performance for the first 12 months operations of Allerdale Waste Services (The 
Company). 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that the Shareholder Committee note the report. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

3.1 The Council’s Executive met on 18 March 2020 and resolved to approve the 
creation of the Shareholder Committee. The Shareholder Committee was appointed 
to promote good governance and to demonstrate a clear separation between the 
Council’s role as the Municipal Authority and the Council’s role as shareholder of 
the Company.   

3.2 This Committee of the Executive fulfils the Council’s role as sole shareholder in the 
Company. The Shareholder Committee meets quarterly and operates under the 
governance of the Shareholder Agreement and the associated reserved matters. 

3.3 The Company operates under the governance of the Articles of Association, as 
approved by the Executive on 18 March 2020, and the Company Board meets 
quarterly to review the progress and performance of the business and make 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



decisions and other associated matters, not included within the reserved matters of 
the Shareholder Agreement. 

3.4 The Shareholder Committee has met on three occasions over the last year to 
review the quarterly performance of the Company; on 7 August 2020; 26 October 
2020; and 21 February 2021. This report provides an update of progress for the 4th 
quarter and a summary of the 1st years of operations of the service. 

4.0  Allerdale Waste Services – Progress Update 

4.1 In this 4th quarter the Company has collected from 1,130,583 containers presented. 
The total amount of waste and recycling collected is 9,617 tonnes. This includes 
both domestic and commercial waste collected. This compares to 8,693 tonnes 
collected in the same period as last year, as outlined in Table 1 below: 

 Table 1  

Waste and 
Recycling 
Collected 
(tonnes) 

Q4 
2019/20 

Q4 
2020/21 

Percentage 
Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

Total 
2019/20 

Total 
2020/21 

Percentage 
Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

Refuse 6,230 6,585 5.7% 26,502 27,273 2.9% 

Comingled  1,090 1,235 13.3% 4,172 5,084 21.9% 

Paper & 
Card 

927 999 7.8% 3,646 3,805 4.4% 

Garden 
Waste 

376 725 92.8% 6,276 7,532 20.0% 

Bulky 
Waste  

70 70 0.0% 255 246 (3.7%) 

Total 8,693 9,617 10.6% 20,377 20,716 1.7% 

 

4.2 It is important to factor in the unique circumstances surrounding the past 2 financial 
years. The 19/20 financial year was the first year of delivery through the new FCC 
contract. As previously reported, the service experienced a high degree of missed 
collection in the first quarter of 2019/20 leading to the suspension of comingled 
collection and garden waste during the 2nd Quarter. This had a significant impact on 
collection tonnages in this financial year and can explain the increase in tonnage in 
2020/21.  

4.3 Furthermore, due to the onset of the pandemic, the collection of garden waste was 
suspended by FCC at the end of March 2020. This was just prior to the services 
transferring to the Company on 4th April 2020. The collection of garden waste was 
fully resumed by the Company in mid May 2020. All other Cumbria Local Authorities 

Page 10



also suspended garden waste but resumed collections monthly for the remainder of 
2020. 

4.4 In the 4th quarter, the number of missed containers reported was 1,236 of the 
1,130,583 containers presented. This represents a collection rate of 99.890% for 
this quarter. The collection rate represents a missed rate of 113 containers per 
100,000 collected. We are continuing to concentrate on this area to reduce the 
number of containers that are missed by the collection crews.  

4.5 Containers that are reported as missed, receive an alternative collection within 48 
hours of the end of the day of receipt of notification. For this 4th quarter, there were 
25 containers that were not collected within this 48-hour period. The comparative 
performance is outlined in Table 2 below: 

Table 2. 

 

4.6 In terms of monitoring properties who experience a frequently missed collection 
(missed on more than 2 occasions over the previous 6-week period) there are just 
13 properties falling within this category, in the most recent reporting period. Of 
these 13 properties, 11 were newly reported in this time period. The remaining 
issues with the 2 properties are now resolved and they are now receiving full 
collections. We continue to focus on this area to understand and rectify properties 
that are being frequently missed. 

4.7 The Company managed the transfer of staff and mobilisation of the service during 
the first lock-down in April 2020 and has continued the collection of waste and 
recycling throughout 2020/21 with the challenges presented by the global COVID-
19 pandemic.  

 2020/21 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total 

Containers 
Presented 

1,237,398 1,373,232 1,375,145 1,130,583 5,116,358 

Containers 
Missed  

1,237 1,117 1,053 1,236 4,643 

Containers 
Missed per 
100,000 

99 85 77 113 91 

Justified 
Missed 
Containers 

27 31 14 25 97 

Collection 
Rate % 

99.900 99.919 99.923 99.890 99.909 

Page 11



4.8 The government announced the start of the 3rd National Lockdown on 4th January 
2021. As a result, we again reviewed and reissued our COVID-19 Safe Working 
Practices and Procedures and implemented a number of new measures to protect 
the health and safety of our workforce and customers. Maintaining social distancing; 
high standards of personal hygiene and cleanliness in our Refuse Collection 
Vehicles and maintaining fixed crews remain as key components of our Risk 
Assessment. 

4.9 We experienced our 1st positive case in December and another positive case in 
January, which leading to a number of crew members needing to self-isolate. 
Additionally, other crew members needed to self-isolate either due to experiencing 
symptoms or having been contacted by track and trace. In total there were 13 crew 
members that needed to self-isolate in January.  

4.10 The Company Board met on 23 April 2021 to present and discuss the first 12 
months operations of the Company. The newly established MOT business and car 
servicing business was discussed along with the opportunity to take on Taxi 
Testing, and the new service repairing and delivering of waste and recycling 
containers.  

4.11 Following the options presented to the Shareholder Committee at the meeting on 14 

December 2020, the Company have been requested to undertake further work on 
the future delivery model. This work is now well-underway, and it is expected that 
the outcome and future options for the service, will be presented to a forthcoming 
meeting of the Shareholder Committee. 

5.0 Finance/ Resource implications 

5.1 The audited accounts covering the period 19 November 2019 to 31 March 2021are 
currently being prepared and will be presented to a future meeting of the 
Shareholder Committee following sign-off by the Company Board.  

6.0 Health and Safety impacts 

6.1 We fully appreciate the importance of Health and Safety in delivering the operations 
of the Company. Throughout this 4th Quarter we have continued to work closely 
with the workforce to focus on Health & Safety, continuing to underpin the 
necessary standards expected in delivering the service safely. Our approach in this 
area is delivered by the training of staff on the safe working practices and 
procedures adopted by the Company, continual crew monitoring (both on site and 
remotely) and is overseen by the Health and Safety Committee.   

6.2 Areas that are identified for improvement are followed up directly with the relevant 
staff member, to ensure that the operation is being delivered safely and that high 
standards of Health and Safety are embedded in the Company. The Health and 
Safety Committee has continued to meet every month to addresses issues 
identified, including near miss reports, audits, monitoring and training. The 
Committee was instrumental in the development of the new training video produced 
to train employees in safe container handling and manual handling, as well as safe 
reversing procedures, and this video was delivered to all members of the Company 
in this 4th Quarter.  

Page 12



6.3 The Health and Safety statistical report up to the end of March 2021 is attached at 
Appendix 1 and outlines the reports of accidents and incidents and the activities 
and actions taken to deliver the service safely.   

6.4 The COVID-19 pandemic continues to provide many challenges in delivering the 
service. We have continued monitoring the situation, adopting the guidance 
provided through central government and the Company’s health and safety advisor, 
and implement our COVID-19 Risk Assessment which has been reviewed and 
distributed to all employees each time it is reviewed.   

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1. Health and Safety Statistical Report – March 2021 

  

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

N/A N/A 

 
 
Report author and contact officer: 
Charles Holmes 
Managing Director – Allerdale Waste Services 
charles.holmes@allerdalewasteservices.co.uk 
Tel no. 07725351420 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 
 

Health and Safety Statistics Report Report month: March 2021 

Statistic Current 
month 

Previous 
month 

Year total  
April20-March21 

No of employees 86 86  

Total hours worked 15,214 15,214  

Non-reportable accidents 1 0 8 

Fatalities (RIDDOR) 0 0 0 

Specified injury (RIDDOR) 0 0 2 

Over 7 days (RIDDOR) 0 0 0 

Dangerous Occurrence (RIDDOR) 0 0 0 

Incident involving public (RIDDOR) 0 0 0 

Motor vehicle accidents (MVA) 0 1 8 

Health and safety meetings 1 3 15 

Fire drill  0 0 1 

Emergency drill  0 0 1 

Fire alarm test  4 4 40 

Fire extinguisher test  0 0 1 

Gate inspection 20 14 188 

Workshop / yard / office inspection 4 2 13 

Crew engagement 2 11 148 

RPE inspection 0 0 0 

Harness inspection 0 0 0 

Lifting plant check 0 0 0 

LOLER inspection 7 7 28 

LEV inspection 0 0 0 

Vehicle inspection 20 20 246 

Plant inspection 0 0 0 

Workplace audit 0 1 9 

System audit 0 0 0 

Site induction (+contractors) 4+7 8 +2 135+21 

Contractor permit 0 1 8 

Hazard or near miss record 1 8 80 

Toolbox talk 0 0 3 

Seat belt check 0 0 2 

Summary 

Accidents / incidents 

03/03/21 – Loading operative hit in leg by refuse container displaced when hit by RCV 
barrier arm, no injury caused. 
 

Meetings 

19/03/21 – AWSL Representatives meeting (Solway House) 
 

Gate Inspections 

03/03/2021 – HN63XVW - Number plate light not working. 
03/03/2021 – VK63OAP - No issues identified. 
03/03/2021 – VV65FAO – Fire extinguisher not secured, no sanitiser, door cord damaged, 
front wing damaged.  
03/03/2021 – VX19YPA - No issues identified. 
03/03/2021 – VV68HRR - No issues identified. 

Page 15



 
 
09/03/2021 – VX19YPF - No issues identified. 
09/03/2021 – VX19YOW - Fire extinguisher not secure. 
09/03/2021 – YD19AVC - No issues identified. 
09/03/2021 – VX19YON - No issues identified. 
09/03/2021 – VX19YOT - No issues identified. 
09/03/2021 – VU65FDX – NS front bumper damaged, no operator license. 
 
17/03/2021 – VX19YPG - No issues identified. 
17/03/2021 – VU65FDX - No operator license, N/S seat damaged, dirty condition externally. 
17/03/2021 – VX19YOV - Dirty condition externally 
17/03/2021 – VU65FDV - NS door cord loose. 
17/03/2021 – VX19YPD - NS door cord loose, no spare tacho roll. 
 
25/03/2021 – VU65EZX - Fire extinguisher not secure, N/S washer jet not working, no 
operator license. 
25/03/2021 – PV58XDL - No issues identified. 
25/03/2021 – VN14RCO - Fire extinguisher not secure 
25/03/2021 – VX19YRY - No issues identified. 
 

Crew Engagement 

17/03/2021 – VU65FAO Loader walked out behind vehicle reversing, loader smoking whilst 
loading, loader walked between bin lifts while assisting with reversing vehicle. 
17/03/2021 – VX19YOY Loader lifted 120l container onto bin lift. 
 

Workplace audit 

NA 
 

Hazard / near miss record 

25/03/21 – Redman Lodge, restricted space to turn bend in private road (also poor quality 
road surface). 

Seatbelt check 

NA 
 

 

 

Page 16


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes
	307 Business Plan and Annual Service Charge
	Allerdale Waste Services - Business Plan Updated


	4 Managing Director's Quarterly Progress Report January - March 2021
	Appendix 1- AWS Monthly Statistics March 21 (1)


